
Village of Perry Board of Trustees  

Village Board Meeting  Agenda  Monday, October 3, 2022  7:30 PM  

Village Board Room  46 N Main Street, Perry, NY 14530  

 

1. Open Meeting and Pledge of Allegiance  

  

2. Public Comment  

 

3. Presentations & Board Actions 

a. Approval of Minutes – September 19, 2022 

b. Resolution Authorizing Change Order #4 for Silver Lake Trail Phase I Project 

c. Resolution to Direct Commencement of Action on Behalf of Municipality 

d. Resolution Creating Capital Project (HE) and Budget for CDBG Stormwater Improvements 

Project 

e. Resolution Adopting Fair Housing/Anti-Displacement Plan 

f. Resolution Appointing Section 3 Coordinator for the CDBG Program 

g. Resolution Adopting Policies in Compliance with Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act 

and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 

h. Resolution Appointing Labor Standards Officer for the 2021 CDBG Program 

 

4. Clerk/Deputy Treasurer’s Report  

  

5. Department Reports 

 

6. Trustee Reports  

a. Fire Committee – Air packs 

 

7. Executive Session 

 



 

VILLAGE OF PERRY 
VILLAGE BOARD MEETING MINUTES  

SEPTEMBER 19, 2022 

A Regular Board Meeting of the Village of Perry was held at the Village Hall, 46 North Main 
Street, Perry, New York at 7:30 pm on the 19th day of September 2022. 
 
PRESENT:  Rick Hauser  Mayor 
   Dariel Draper  Trustee 
   Jacquie Billings Trustee 
   Arlene Lapiana Trustee 

Ernie Lawrence Trustee 

ALSO PRESENT: Samantha Pierce Administrator 
Christina Slusser Village Clerk 
  

GUESTS:  Lorraine Sturm Perry Herald 
  

Mayor Hauser called the meeting to order at 7:30 pm and led in the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
No members of the public were present for comment.  

 
PRESENTATIONS & BOARD ACTIONS 

MINUTES 
Motion to approve the minutes from the Regular Board Meeting on September 6, 2022 was 
made by Trustee Lawrence, seconded by Trustee Draper, and carried with all voting aye.  

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING PAYMENTS FOR WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT PROJECT 

WHEREAS, the Village Clerk has received Pay App #16 from the general contractor, Crane-
Hogan Structural Systems, Inc., for the wastewater treatment plant project in the amount of 
$337,041.00 and 

WHEREAS, the Village Clerk has received pay app #10 from the electrical contractor, M.W. 
Controls Service, Inc., for the wastewater treatment plant project in the amount of $28,832.50; 
and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Perry Village Board of Trustees hereby approves 
the following payments for the wastewater treatment plant project and directs the Village Clerk 
to submit vouchers for payment: 



 

 Crane-Hogan Structural Systems, Inc.   $337,041.00 

 M.W. Controls Service, Inc.    $28,832.50 
 
Motion was made by Trustee Lawrence approving payments to Crane-Hogan in the amount of 
$337,041.00 and M.W. Controls for $28,832.50 for the Wastewater Treatment Plant Project 
which was seconded by Trustee Lapiana and carried unanimously. 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE IMPLEMENTATION, AND FUNDING IN THE FIRST INSTANCE 
100% OF THE FEDERAL-AID AND STATE “MARCHISELLI” PROGRAM-AID ELIGIBLE COSTS, OF A 
TRANSPORTATION FEDERAL-AID PROJECT, AND APPROPRIATING FUNDS THEREFORE 
 
WHEREAS, a Project for the Village of Perry Silver Lake Trail Phase 1, P.I.N. 4761.26 (the 
“Project”) is eligible for funding under Title 23 U.S. Code, as amended, that calls for the 
apportionment of the costs such program to be borne at the ratio of 80% Federal funds and 
20% non-federal funds; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Village of Perry desires to advance the Project by making a commitment of 100% 
of the non-federal share of the costs of the Silver Lake Trail Phase 1; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Village Board, duly convened does hereby  

RESOLVED, that the Village Board hereby approves the above-subject project; and it is hereby 
further 

RESOLVED, that the Village Board hereby authorizes the Village of Perry to pay in the first 
instance 100% of the federal and non-federal share of the cost of the Project or portions 
thereof; and it is further  

RESOLVED, that the sum of $41,431.00 is hereby appropriated from General Unallocated Fund 
Balance and made available to cover the cost of participation in the above phase of the Project; 
and it is further  

RESOLVED, that in the event the full federal and non-federal share costs of the project exceeds 
the amount appropriated above, the Village of Perry shall convene as soon as possible to 
appropriate said excess amount immediately upon the notification by the New York State 
Department of Transportation thereof, and it is further  

RESOLVED, that the Mayor of the Village of Perry be and is hereby authorized to execute all 
necessary Agreements, certifications or reimbursement requests for Federal Aid and/or 
Marchiselli Aid on behalf of the Village of Perry with the New York State Department of 
Transportation in connection with the advancement or approval of the Project and providing 
for the administration of the Project and the municipality's first instance funding of project 



 

costs and permanent funding of the local share of federal-aid and state-aid eligible Project costs 
and all Project costs within appropriations therefore that are not so eligible, and it is further 

RESOLVED, that a certified copy of this resolution be filed with the New York State 
Commissioner of Transportation by attaching it to any necessary Agreement in connection with 
the Project and it is further   

RESOLVED, this Resolution shall take effect immediately. 
 
A similar resolution was approved at the last board meeting but was found to be inaccurate 
after speaking to the NYS DOT.  This resolution will replace the previously approved resolution 
to correct the total project cost.  Trustee Billings made a motion to approve the resolution 
authorizing the implementation, and funding in the first instance 100% of the Federal-Aid and 
State “Marchiselli” Program-Aid eligible costs, of a transportation Federal-Aid project, and 
appropriating funds therefore.  This motion was seconded by Trustee Lawrence and carried 
unanimously.  

 
RESOLUTION ACCEPTING PROPOSAL FROM ALLIED CPAS, PC FOR ACCOUNTING SERVICES FOR 
THE 2022 FISCAL YEAR COURT AUDIT 

WHEREAS, Allied CPAs, PC performed the 2021 fiscal year Village of Perry court audit; and 

WHEREAS, Allied CPAs, PC has provided a proposal in an amount not to exceed $1,200 for the 
2022 fiscal year court audit; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Village of Perry Board approves the proposal from CPAs, PC to 
perform the 2022 fiscal year court audit in an amount not to exceed $1,200.00 and authorizes 
the Village Administrator to schedule the audit.  
 
Proposals were requested last year for the court audit and Allied is holding last year’s fee.  
Motion was made by Trustee Lapiana to approve the resolution accepting the proposal from 
Allied CPAs in a not-to-exceed amount which was seconded by Trustee Draper and carried with 
all voting aye.   

 
CLERK/DEPUTY TREASURER REPORT  

FY 2022-2023  
Abstract #8  
Vouchers #531 - 615  
  
General Fund  $   28,665.85  
Special Grant Fund  $                -    
Water Fund  $   12,684.23  



 

Sewer Fund  $     4,071.90  
Capital Projects Fund  $ 388,012.28  
Trust & Agency  $     1,026.99  
Silver Lake Watershed Commission  $                -    
Total  $ 434,461.25  
  

Vouchers were audited by Trustee Lawrence.  Trustee Billings made a motion to approve 
payments in the amount of $434,461.25 which was seconded by Trustee Lapiana and carried 
with all voting aye.   

 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
The department report for the Police Department was reviewed.  It was noted that the N. 
Center Street speed sign is fixed.  The Water and Wastewater Treatment Plant reports were 
reviewed as well as DPW and Parks with no action needed.  

 
TRUSTEE REPORTS 
The DPW committee is reviewing options for the Water Treatment Plant Project.  There is an 
opportunity for a grant which would cover 70% of the remaining project costs.  The Village will 
know by October 1st if eligible.  There is no application needed.  The Village would automatically 
be in the running based on scoring for the WIIA grant.   
 
The Fire Committee is looking at options for replacing air packs which are set to expire at the 
end of October.  The Village Administrator was told that FEMA could let the Village know if they 
were “hot or cold” on being awarded the grant, but the Village has not heard yet.  If the grant is 
not awarded, the Village will need to finance the air packs.  If needed, it will be helpful to align 
payments for when other dept for the department comes off the books.   
 
Mayor Hauser spoke on the Economic Resilience and Recovery Plan.  Presented, was the 
newest copy of the draft prepared by Jared Shepard of MRB Group.  One of the main things 
needed were specific action items and examples to make the plan a tool the Village can take 
advantage of.  The Board will review the plan and certain items can be taken to committees for 
review if board members feel it is necessary.  This strategic plan could be an addendum to the 
Comprehensive Plan which the Board can use as guidance.  The plan will have no affect on 
zoning.  It was noted that the plan contains 2019 data, which is pre-pandemic.  The plan should 
include updated data from 2022 when available.  Mayor Hauser proposed official adoption of 
the plan once reviewed and approved by board members.   
 
Mayor Hauser and Administrator Pierce had a kickoff meeting regarding Climate Smart through 
NYSERDA.  The Village is able to get credit for clean energy steps already completed.  An audit 
will be done on Perry to find out how many things have been accomplished so far.  Examples of 



 

this include campaigns about community solar and connecting citizens with free audits to save 
on their energy bills.  With more to come on Climate Smart and clean energy, it was proposed 
to appoint an ad hoc committee.  Mayor Hauser made a motion to appoint Trustee Billings and 
himself to an ad hoc committee to work on clean energy and a climate smart community.  
Meetings will be on Mondays at 2:30 pm.  This motion was seconded by Trustee Lapiana and 
carried with all voting aye.  The next meeting will take place on October 24th at 2:30 pm.   
 
Trustee Lawrence attended “Rock the Docks” saying that it was “extraordinary” and a perfect 
location for the event.   
 
Trustee Billings mentioned budget discussions coming up.  The Board will need to consider 
using ARPA funds to wrap up projects – the Public Beach, Silver Lake Trail, and the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant Project.  The Village needs to focus on closing out open items for projects 
already started and almost completed.    
 
The next time the Board meets it will be the week before the Arts and Crafts Show and Sale at 
the Village Park.  Volunteers are still needed and people should help spread the word.  There is 
no age limit for volunteers.  The shuttle is $10.  No pets are allowed and no masks are required 
since the state policy has been lifted.   
 
Trustee Billings added that she would love to hear a summary of committee meetings.  
Attendees of committee meetings should provide a summary so notes can be added to board 
agendas.   
 
With nothing for executive session, motion to adjourn was made at 8:06 pm by Trustee Draper 
which was seconded by Trustee Lapiana and carried with all voting aye.  

 
Respectfully submitted, 
Christina Slusser, Village Clerk 

 



 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CHANGE ORDER #4 FOR SILVER LAKE TRAIL PHASE I PROJECT 
 
WHEREAS, the Village of Perry has entered into a supplemental agreement #2 with the New York State 
Department of Transportation to receive the remaining funding towards the Silver Lake Trail Phase I 
Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the supplemental agreement #2 included $126,530 for the additional sign work and 
installation to be completed by the contractor, CP Ward Inc.; and 
 
WHEREAS, C&S Companies has presented Change Order #4 regarding the Silver Lake Trail Phase I 
Project in the amount of $126,530 for the additional signs and installation; and 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that the Village of Perry Board of Trustees hereby approves Change Order #4 in the an 
amount of $126,530 and authorizes the Mayor to execute the change order documents. 



Description PIN 4761.26
C&S Project #: W48.001.001

Prime Contractor C.P. WARD, INC.
100 W. River Road, PO Box 900
Scottsville, NY 14546

Change Order 4

Status Pending

Date Created 09/16/2022

Type Owner's Request

Summary Change Order 04

Change Order Description This change order adds the new signage items.

Awarded Project Amount $756,842.00

Authorized Project Amount $744,684.02

Change Order Amount $126,530.00

Revised Project Amount $871,214.02

C&S Companies
Change Order Details
SILVER LAKE TRAIL PHASE I

Change Order Details:

SILVER LAKE TRAIL PHASE I

09/20/2022

Page 1 of 4



New Items

Line Number Item ID Unit Quantity Unit Price Extension

Section: 1 - Description

0700 950.1901 LS 1.000 $19,645.000 $19,645.00

MISCELLANEOUS: WAYFINDING SIGN - METAL POST / TRAILBLAZER NEW POLE MOUNT (A & D)

Reason: SEE ATTACHMENT, SIGNS A & D INCLUDED IN THIS ITEM.

0710 950.1902 LS 1.000 $14,690.000 $14,690.00

MISCELLANEOUS: TRAILBLAZER - EXISTING POLE MOUNT (B)

Reason: SEE ATTACHMENT, SIGN B

0720 950.1903 LS 1.000 $4,262.000 $4,262.00

MISCELLANEOUS: TRAILBLAZER NEW POLE MOUNT - 12X18 & 12X22

Reason: SEE ATTACHMENT, SIGNS C & E INCLUDED IN THIS ITEM.

0730 950.1904 LS 1.000 $6,422.000 $6,422.00

MISCELLANEOUS

Reason: SEE ATTACHMENT, SIGNS K & F INCLUDED IN THIS ITEM.

0740 950.1905 LS 1.000 $23,042.000 $23,042.00

MISCELLANEOUS

Reason: SEE ATTACHMENT, SIGN G

Change Order Details:

SILVER LAKE TRAIL PHASE I

09/20/2022

Page 2 of 4



Line Number Item ID Unit Quantity Unit Price Extension

0750 950.1906 LS 1.000 $48,432.000 $48,432.00

MISCELLANEOUS

Reason: SEE ATTACHMENT, SIGN H

0760 950.1907 LS 1.000 $7,294.000 $7,294.00

MISCELLANEOUS

Reason: SEE ATTACHMENT, SIGN F

0770 950.1908 LS 1.000 $2,743.000 $2,743.00

MISCELLANEOUS

Reason: SEE ATTACHMENT, SIGN L

8 items Total: $126,530.00

Attachments

Document Name Description Submission Date

Sign_Types_with_Pricing.pdf Sign Types with Pricing.pdf 09/20/2022 07:19 AM EDT

1 attachment

Change Order Details:

SILVER LAKE TRAIL PHASE I

09/20/2022

Page 3 of 4



_____________________________________________________________________________________

Resident Engineer - C&S ENGINEERS, INC.

_____________________________________________________________________________________

C.P. WARD, INC.

_____________________________________________________________________________________

VILLAGE OF PERRY

Change Order Details:

SILVER LAKE TRAIL PHASE I

09/20/2022

Page 4 of 4



VILLAGE BOARD OF THE VILLAGE OF PERRY 
RESOLUTION TO DIRECT COMMENCEMENT OF ACTION  

ON BEHALF OF MUNICIPALITY 
Adopted:  ________________, 2022 

 
WHEREAS, the Village Board of the Village of Perry met at a regular board meeting at 

the Village Hall located at 46 North Main Street on the 3rd day of October 2022, commencing at 
__:___ p.m., at which time and place the following members were: 
 
 Present: Mayor  ____________________  

Trustee ____________________  
Trustee ____________________  
Trustee ____________________ 
Trustee ____________________ 

Absent:  ________ ____________________ 
  

WHEREAS, all Board Members, having due notice of said meeting, and that pursuant to 
Article 7, §104 of the Public Officers Law, said meeting was open to the general public and due 
and proper notice of the time and place whereof was given as required by law; and 

  
WHEREAS, it appears that Adam and Samantha Newburey are in violation of §490-46 of 

the Zoning Code of the Village of Perry relative to the property located at 84 South Main Street, 
Perry, New York 14530; and 
 

WHEREAS, it appears to be in the best interest of the Village of Perry to prohibit Adam 
and Samantha Newburey from continuing to be in violation of said Section of §490-46 of the 
Zoning Code of the Village of Perry; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Village Board of the Village of Perry feels it is in the best interest of the 
Village of Perry to retain the services of Village Attorney, David M. DiMatteo, Esq. to pursue the 
enforcement of §490-46 of the Zoning Code of the Village against Adam and Samantha Newburey 
to ensure that this property is brought into compliance with said Law. 
 

NOW ON MOTION OF _________________________ which has been duly seconded 
by _________________________, be it 
 

RESOLVED, that the Mayor of the Village of Perry, be and he hereby is authorized and 
directed to retain the services of David M. DiMatteo, Attorney for the Village of Perry in this 
matter, upon such terms as he deems proper and advisable, and Mayor of the Village of Perry shall 
authorize David M. DiMatteo on behalf of the Village of Perry to take such action as may be 
deemed advisable to prevent any continuation of the violation of §490-46 of the Zoning Code of 
the Village of Perry and the seeking of permanent injunction. 
 
Ayes: ___  
Nays: ___   
Quorum Present:  __ Yes   __ No  
Dated: __________________, 2022      

________________________  
        Christina Slusser, Clerk 
[SEAL]       Village of Perry   



 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION CREATING CAPITAL PROJECT (HE) AND BUDGET FOR CDBG STORMWATER 
IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 
 
WHEREAS, the Village of Perry has been awarded a Community Development Block Grant for 
stormwater improvements for a total of $672,500.00; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Village of Perry is responsible for a match of $35,000.00 and was budgeted for in the 
2022-2023 Village Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Village Administrator has proposed a budget for the project involving the awarded grant 
monies and a cash match from the 2022-2023 budget as follows: 
 
REVENUE: 
 HE4097   Federal Aid - CDBG    $ 672,500.00 
 HE5031   Interfund Transfers, General    $   35,000.00 

        $ 707,500.00 
EXPENDITURES: 
 HE8540.2  Drain & Storm - Construction   $ 599,245.00  
 HE8540.21  Drain & Storm - Engineering   $   83,255.00 
 HE8540.22  Drain & Storm - Administration    $   25,000.00  
  
          $ 707,500.00 
 
     TOTAL PROJECT BUDGET   $ 707,500.00 

; and 
WHEREAS, the Village Administrator is proposing the following budget transfer: 
  

DEBIT:   A9901.9 (Transfer to Capital Projects) $35,000.00 
 CREDIT:  A201 (Savings)      $35,000.00 
 
 DEBIT:  HE201 (Savings)    $35,000.00 
 CREDIT:  HE5031 (Interfund Transfers)    $35,000.00 

 
 

 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Village of Perry Board of Trustees hereby authorizes the creation of the capital 
project (HE) and the project budget for the CDBG Stormwater Improvements Project; and 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Village Clerk is directed to provide a copy of this resolution to the Village 
Administrator. 



RESOLUTION ADOPTING FAIR HOUSING/ANTI-DISPLACEMENT PLAN 

WHEREAS, the Village of Perry, State of New York, has been granted Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) Funds from the State of New York; and  

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 519 of Public Law 101-144, the HUD Appropriations Act requires 
certain statement of assurances and certifications; and 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that pursuant to the Village of Perry being granted CDBG funds by the 
State; the Village of Perry, by administrative act, does adopt Fair Housing and Anti-Displacement Plans for 
the Village; and  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Village Board of Trustees appoints the Mayor, Rick Hauser, to serve 
as the Fair Housing Officer for the Village of Perry. 

















RESOLUTION APPOINTING SECTION 3 COORDINATOR FOR THE CDBG PROGRAM 

WHEREAS, the Village of Perry has received funding under the Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) Program for various housing rehabilitation and public infrastructure improvement projects; and 

WHEREAS, the Village is required to maintain compliance with CDBG program regulations, including 
provisions of Section 3 of the HUD Act of 1968, as amended; and 

WHEREAS, the Village is required to designate a Section 3 Coordinator for the CDBG funded projects; 
and 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Village of Perry Board of Trustees hereby appoints Rick Hauser, Mayor, to 
serve as the Section 3 Coordinator for the CDBG Program. 



 

 

 
 
 
RESOLUTION ADOPTING POLICIES IN COMPLIANCE WITH TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH 
DISABILITIES ACT AND SECTION 504 OF THE REHABILITATION ACT OF 1973 
 
WHEREAS, the Village of Perry has received funding under the Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) Act and is required to take affirmative steps to ensure that the CDBG programs, services and 
activities are accessible to, and usable by, individuals with disabilities; and 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that the Village of Perry hereby adopts the attached policy statement regarding 
compliance with Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation 
Act of 1973; and 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that the Village of Perry hereby adopts the complaint procedures described in the policy 
statement to address complaints of discrimination with regard to the ADA and/or Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Village Clerk is hereby directed to post the policy statement in the 
Village Clerk’s Office and to publish a notice regarding the availability of the policy statement and 
complaint form. 

 
 
 

















RESOLUTION APPOINTING LABOR STANDARDS OFFICER FOR THE 2021 CDBG PROGRAM 

WHEREAS, the Village of Perry has received funding under the 2021 Community Development Block 

Grant (CDBG) Program for Storm Drainage Improvements in the Olin Ave, Benedict St, Watkins Ave, and 

Hawthorne St. Neighborhood; and 

WHEREAS, the Village is required to designate a Labor Standards Officer for the project. 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Village Board hereby appoints Steve Deaton, Superintendent of Public Works, 
to serve as the Labor Standards Officer for the 2021 CDBG Program 



Clerk/Deputy Treasurer Report

FY 2022-2023
Abstract #9
Vouchers #616 - 673

General Fund 27,210.03$     
Special Grant Fund 160.00$           
Water Fund 4,240.41$       
Sewer Fund 8,190.12$       
Capital Projects Fund -$                 
Trust & Agency 2,221.23$       
Silver Lake Watershed Commission 37.99$             
Total 42,059.78$     

● Vouchers were audited by Trustee Billings
● Prepaid to avoid late fees 872.90$           

Village of Perry
Village Board Meeting

10/3/2022



09-29-22
17:07:00

Village of Perry - 2022 - 2023 - Village Tax Collection
Trial Balance - All Swis Codes

09-29-22

Original Warrant 2,232,534.16
Adjustments 0.00

Adjusted Warrant 2,232,534.16
Full Payments 2,064,607.60
Penalties 4,407.75

Total Collections 2,069,015.35
Taxes Outstanding 167,926.56

cslusser
Stamp

cslusser
Stamp


	Change Order 4.pdf
	C&S Companies
	Change Order Details
	SILVER LAKE TRAIL PHASE I
	New Items
	Attachments



	Clerk Report 2022-10-03.pdf
	10-3-22




